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Independent Auditor's Rerrort
To the City Council
City of Celina, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, and each major fund of City of Celin4 Texas
("City") as ofand for the year ended September 30,2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.
Management's Responsibility for the f inancial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su{ficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, and each major fund of City of Celina, Texas as of September 30,2015, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Re quire d Supplem

e

ntary Info r ma tion

in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedule, schedule of changes in net pension liability and related
ratios, and schedule of contributions on pages 7 tkough 21, and pages 55 through 57, respectively, be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Accounting principles generally accepted

Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Celina, Texas basic financial statements as a whole. The supplementary schedules are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary schedules have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
Respectfully submrtted.

Srnil, Sb'(cl,or,

t;r,&"

r,r"l U"r^+/,"y,

Scott, Singleton, Fincher and Company, PC
Certifi ed Public Accountants
February 8, 201 6
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis
The City of Celina presents the City's financial statements. This overview is an analysis ol the
financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. This discussion
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes. Comparative data
is also presented for govemment-wide and fund financial statements at the end of this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

.
.
.

Govemment-wide net position reported in the Statement of Net Position is $33,390,135.
Of this amount 524,944,012 is invested in capital assets or restricted for debt service and
capital projects, and the balance of $8,446, I 23 is available as unrestricted net position.
Govemment-wide net position increased by 56,592,7 63 during 201 5.
Each of the City's fund financial statements reported changes in equity as follows:
General Fund- $1,547,869 increase
Water & Sewer Fund - 92,923,281 increase
Debt Service Fund - $ 104,705 increase
Capital Projects Fund - $3,858,602 decrease

LISING THIS A,\iVLI,4I REPORT:

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The govemment-wide financial
statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. These provide
information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a long-term view of the City's
financial condition. They reflect the flow oJ total econontic resources in a manner similar to the
I'inancial reports of a business enterprise.
The fund financial statements report the City's operations in more detail than the govemmentwide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. Govemmental
fund statements tell how services were financed in the short+erm, as well as what resources
remain for future spending. Governmental funds reflect the Jlow of current .financial resources.
Proprietary fund statements offer short and long term financial information about the activities
the government operates like businesses, such as the water and sewer system. The statements are
followed by a section of required supplementary inlormation that further explains and supports
the information in the financia[ statements.
The notes to the financial statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for
full disclosures for the govemment-wide statements and the fund financial statements.
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REPORTING
STATEMENTS:

THE CITY AS A

FINANCIAL

'YHOLE.GOVERNMENT-WIDE

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
Government-wide financial statements provide an analysis of the City's overall financial
condition and operations. The primary objective of these statements is to show whether the
City's financial condition has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year's activities.
The Statement of Net Position includes all the City's assets and liabilities while the Statement of
Activities includes all the revenue and expenses generated by the City's operations during the
year. Govemment-wide statements utilize the accrual basis of accounting, which is the same
method used by most private sector companies.

All of the current year's revenue and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid. The City's revenue is divided into the following categories: l) charges for
services, 2) operating grants and contributions, 3) capital grants and contributions and 4) general
revenues not associated with any specific program function. All of the City's assets are reported
whether they serve the current year or future years. Liabilities are also reported regardless of
whether they must be paid in the current or future years.
City's net position and the changes in it. The City's net position
(the difference between assets and liabilities) provides one measure ofthe City's financial health
or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net position are one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall
health of the City, you should consider non-financial factors as well, such as changes in the
City's request for services from citizens and the condition of the City's facilities.

These two statements report the

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City has two kinds of
activities:

Governmental Activities - Most of the City's services are reported here, including,
administration, judicial, fire and emergency services, public works, police, parks and recreation,
infrastructure and the main street project. Property taxes and state and federal grants finance
most of these activities.

- The City charges fees to customers to help it cover the cost of certain
services it provides. The City's water and sewer system operations and sanitation services are
reported here.
Business-type Activities
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REPORTING THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS:
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds. The
City's administration establishes funds to help it control and manage money for particular
purposes. The City's two kinds of funds - govemmental funds and proprietary funds use
different accounting approaches.

Goternntental Funds - The City reports most of its basic services in govemmental funds.
Govemmental funds use the modified accrual basis oJ' accouttting (a method that measures the
receipt and disbursement ofcash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash)
and they report balances that are available for future spending. Govemmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general operations and the basic services it
provides. We describe the accounting differences between govemmental activities (reported in
the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and govemmental funds in
reconciliation schedules found at the bottom of each of the govemmental fund financial
statements.

Proprietary Funds The Proprietary/Enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are
financed in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing water and sewer services to the general public on a continuing basis
are financed through user charges.

GOVERNM E NT-WI D E FINA NC IA L ANA LYSIS :
Net position serves as one useful indicator of a govemment's financial position. In the case of
the City, the combined net position exceeded liabilities by $33,390,135 and 526,79'7,372 at the
close of FY 201 5 and FY 2014, respectively.

FINANCIAI, ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT.PI/IDE STATEMENTS:
The combined net position of the City's activities increased from $26,797,372 to $33,390,135 or
$6,592,7 63 during 2015. Unrestricted net position the part ofnet position rhat can be used to
finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation, or other legal requirements was $8,446,1 23.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS:

As the City completed the year, its govemmental funds $ 12,273 ,765 and proprietary fund
$13,695,800 reported combined fund balance and net position of $25,969,565 a $796,363
increase from last year. Water and sewer operations also provided $2,923,281 of the increase.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATTON:
Capital Assets - the City's investment in capital assets reported in governmental activities and
business-type activities was $26,191,788 and $19,731,271, respectively. This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements, equipment and vehicles. The change in
the City's net investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $4,579,594 and
$2,827,592 in each of the respective activities. Additional information on capital asset activity
can be found in note 5 to the financial statements.

Longierm Debt - at year-end the City had $29,899,406 in bonds and capital leases outstanding an increase of$882,179. Additional information on long-term liabilities can be found in note 6
to the financial statements.
BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS & ECONOMIC FACTORS:

Our employees at the City of Celina constantly strive to price solutions for the needs of our
community. As a connection between our citizens and the City Council, our City staff interacts
with the community to develop a vision for growth, set goals for the use of revenues, and to
foster innovative change within the community.
As a City, we have govemmental responsibility for that which is tangible and measurable-steel,
asphalt, water and concrete. And, also for "community," the intangible "quality of life"
initiatives - public safety, programs offered through our parks and recreational leagues, our
library, the festivals and annual events such as Cajun Fest, Balloon Fest, Splash & Blast. Other
community events such as Farmers Markets, Movie Nights, and Trick or Treat on the Square are
growing every year.
Our city infrastructure programs along with our community programs are all "building Celina."
With proper planning and execution of both, people will not only come to Celina, they will stay.
We just completed a Citizen Survey to identify citizens' priorities for the Council's annual
budget retreat at the end of July. In one way, the survey is a report card (with 93% reporting
satisfaction with Celina's Quality of Life and 98% feeling safe here), in another, a guide to
ensure our focus is on citizen priorities. This survey will aid us in preparing for the future of
Celina. The survey results will provide guidance for us on what tlpe of special event the
community seeks, what park amenities they want and which additional services are essential. We
will leam why citizens came to Celina and why they chose to stay here. This valuable
information will add a community perspective to our process and enable the Council in sening
the budget to deliver and plan lor citizen identified priorities.

One goal for every year is to continue to increase sales tax receipts by providing more
opportunities for our citizens and visitors to shop locally. Since 201 I , shopping opportunities in
Celina have increased and so have our sales tax receipts. In 2015, revenues are up by nearly
20%. Sales tax receipts spread the burden of govemmental responsibility (Fire, Police, street
construction and repairs, water, sewer and parks) amongst all who use the services. The opening
of the new Fire Station in early August, the completion of street repairs on Sunset and Utah in
late August, and Ash Street in October, are examples ofprojects funded by our tax dollars.
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Economic Development success can be achieved by creating attractive and competitive busrness
environments where businesses choose our community over others. Celina is an emerging
economy with single family homes being built in every area of our community. Additions in
Light Farms, Carter Ranch and Heritage will be joined by development in Parkside, Lakes of
Mustang Ranch, Creeks of Legacy, and Wellspring. New water and waste-water infrastructure
slated for construction beginning in October through mid-2016 will open the Southeast sector of
our City for additional development including planned communities which will provide new
options ior residential, retail and service sector business development. The recent purchase of
additional land at Wilson Creek Park and the future construction of a walking,ihiking trail linking
Old Celina Park and Wilson Creek Park will begin our intermodal initiative for Celina and
enhance connectivity across our City.

An effective economic development equation includes partnering with our community to create a
destination that people will treasure. Great schools, special events, and collaborative approach to
recruiting and retaining our business citizens will guide our journey. We also want to include
residents in the design of where and how our community grows. Many of our best ideas come
from brainstorming sessions with residents. Every day they see things that can be improved and
have ideas on how it can be done. The continued gathering of information, from the survey, from
resident communications to elected leaders and to staff, provides the feedback to help us to
evaluate and assess our performance.

Our goals include creating positive business environments that lacilitate sustainable growth
through great customer service delivery, strategic design and location for our infrastructure
investments and the management ofour future through advanced planning. While our employees
continue to deliver excellent customer service, we always look to the citizens of Celina to learn
more lrom them about our community needs so we can constantly strive for performance
standards and meet or exceed their expectations,

The City of Celina has increased its use of social media to help in collaborating with citizens on
issues that concern them. We will continue using social media to network, organize and reach
out to our customers on changes to our systems, special events, volunteer opportunities and
happenings in Celina. We continue to create avenues for citizens to obtain data via our website.
We encourage citizens to use the data to improve their knowledge of how local govemment
operates.

Public infrastructure and public safety remained a priority during fiscal year 2014-2015 and will
remain a priority in the 2015-2016 fiscal year. Several projects will be started and completed
next year that will fulfil promises to our citizens. The Ash Street road construction project
finished in fiscal year 2015 which provides a long needed improvement to a road that is
paramount in the connection between Preston Road and Business 289. It also included the
redesign and construction of a bridge that aids in the alleviation of flooding to the surrounding
neighborhood. The reconstruction of Sunset Boulevard near Celina Elementary school will be
completed before the end of2016.
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The construction of new fire station was completed in fiscal year 2015 and we relocated our
existing fire station to a more viable location on Preston Road. Celina citizens have awaited this
construction for many years. The new design includes three bays to accommodate all ofthe fire
department vehicles currently used to provide public safety.
We added two new building inspectors to aid in the review of building plans and the inspection
of new homes. When council approved this measure it provided a new level of customer service
not only to our current residents, but also to our new builders, developers and the citizens of the
future.
Each of our employees provides a uniqueness to our team. We began bridging the gap between
technology and access to govemment by using the special talents of our employees. Our citizens
and our employees have an expectation for our organization to be absolutely transparent. Now
you can find all of our financial information online with just the click of a button. The City of
Celina eamed the Gold Award from the Texas Comptroller's office for Transparency in
Financial Management. We also continued to renovate our website to make it easier for our
employees to provide accessible information for our citizens.

The City provided three new vehicles for our Police Department to aid them in their goal of
preventing crime and providing support to our citizens in their time ofneed. By anticipating the
rate of growth for the City, for our next budget cycle, we have asked and council approved three
more fire personnel as well as four new police oflficers. Once again this shows council's
continued support for our community's public safety needs.
The Police Department's Criminal Investigation division has been using an innovative case
management system that facilitated the effective and efficient investigation of offenses, case
processing, and case presentation to the District Attomey's Office. New policies affecting
property forfeirure has been working for a year now. A property and evidence management
system was created to provide effective, efficient, and code compliant operation of the property
and evidence room.

The Fire Department's hazard mitigation plan is in place. They continued to develop the Texas
Best Practices program to improve our service delivery processes. The Fire Department installed
the City's first all-hazard alert warning siren at Old Celina Park for immediate waming
applications during special events.
Our Parks department continued to expand our programs. They continued to provide baseball,
basketball, flag football, girls' softball, 7-on-7 football, soccer and adult softball toumaments to
our citizens as well as to many visitors of our community.
As development comes to Celina, our Planning and Development staff has been working hard to
educate our development community on the International Code Council's 2012 Building & Fire
Codes. Celina also adopted the city's first hotel/motel tax. Many projects were completed this
year including the rezoning of three different tracts and adding three annexed tracts into one
Master Planned Community PD (Creeks of Legacy). The Preston Road Overlay design
requirements were also updated. And the staff aided in the design and completion of two
commercial projects, O'Reillys Auto Part and First United Methodist Church.
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In 2016, we will continue to constantly work to reinvent govemment into a model that listens to
and serves the needs ofour citizens as well as competitively look for more efficient and effective
service methods for our community.
The main goal the Council has charged staff with is to build a community that is prepared for our

fuftrre and that reverently remembers our past. Together, with our citizens, we are building a
geat Celina!
The City of Celina continued to enjoy tremendous constant growth in 2015. The City issued 478
building permits, compared to 346 permits last year. Accordingly, permit fee collections have
increased by $446,346 or 34 percentage points fot the same period. For the fiscal year 20142015, the City collected $1,767,856 in permit fees compared with $1,321,510 for the same
period last year. The City of Celina possesses a vast amount of land that makes it attractive to
housing developers. The increase in building permits and fees can be contributed to the health
environment in housing market for the region as well as the state.
The City of Celina's poftion of sales tax collection increased from $505,221 in FY 2013-2014 to
$603,949 in FY 2014-2015 (figures do not include CEDC or CCDC collections). The City is
'19.5
percentage points or $98,728 increase in sales tax collections in FY 2014experiencing a
2015. The increase follows the trend through the state. The reduction in unemployment in
conjunction with the sales tax collection from internet purchases has contributed to the increase.
The opening ofnew retail shops and restaurants played a role in the increase of sales tax revenue
as well. Management anticipates that this increase will continue through FY 2015-2016 with a
moderate pace.

Total assessed value of the properties for the City of Celina increased from $554,210,534 in FY
2014 to $561,671,666 FY 2015. With the exception of FY 2010, the City of Celina has enjoyed
an increase in its property values since FY 2001. This increases are representing a city that is in a
health growth mode. In FY 2014-2015 the assessed property value has increased by 1.35%. This
increase mainly resulted from new construction in housing in the City along with annexation of
new parcels of land. Reviewing the history of the City's assessed property values provides
evidence of the City's measurable growth in last decade.

Year

Assessed Value

2004

143,297,951

2005

181,232,497

2006

oh Change

Year

Assessed Value

2010

455,200,487

-1.7%

26.5%

20tl

46t,849,745

1.5%

224,4t2,066

23.8%

20t2

482,062,285

4.4yo

2007

284,847298

26.9%

2013

507,835,848

s.3%

2008

418,824,688

47.0%

2014

554,210,534

9.t%

2009

463300493

10.6%

2015

561,671,666

1.3%

% Change
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Total water sales for the FY 2015 has increased by substantial amount. This increase is a direct
result of new developments and increase of number of houses in those developments along with
installation ofnew and accurate electronic meter system. Total revenue from water sales for the
FY 2015 was $3,489,083 which represent 25 %o increase over previous year.

A review of the history of the City's water sales over past few years indicates a healthy average
increase ofover 19 percentage points in water sales. History of water sales is illustrated below:

Year

Water Salcs

ok Change

Year

Water Salcs

% Change

2010

1,944,348

2t .30h

41.4%

2011

)

s4q qt

3l.l,J6

1,871,163

61.7%

20t2

)

</.e a/.-)

0.0%

2007

1,298,932

-30.6%

2013

2,772,632

8.8%

2008

1,598,567

23.10k

2014

,

qRl

0.3%

2009

t,602,364

0.2%

2015

3,489,083

2004

818,403

2005

1,t57,066

2006

?RO

I

25.5yo

Total sewer increased from $1,160,403 in FY 2014 to $1,409,070 in FY 2014-2015. The
increase of $248,667 or 21.4 percentage points is primarily the result of increase in number of
customers and partially is due to accurate reading of the water meters that correlate to sewer
sale.. A review of the history of the City's sewer sales over past lew years indicates a healthy
average increase ol more than 14 percentage points in sewer sales. History of sewer sales is
illustrated below:

Year

Sewer Sales

2004

341,916

2005

,103,498

2006

Year

% Change

Sewer Sales

ok Change

2010

114,022

35.2o/n

18.0%

201I

946,269

22.3o/o

509,798

26.3%

2012

994,332

5.1%

200'7

485,948

-4.7%

2013

t,060,773

6.7%

2008

546,556

12.5%

2014

1,160,403

9A%

2009

s?r rqq

2015

\,409,070

21.40

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT:
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview ofthe City's finances and to show the City's accountability for
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information,
including financial information for the City's two component units, please do not hesitate to
contact Mike Foreman, City Manager, or Jay Toutounchian, Director of Finance, by phone at
(972) 382-2682 or by E-maiI at mforeman@celina-tx.gov or itoutounchian@celina-tx.gov .
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CITY OF CELINA, TEX{S
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

Governmentnl Activities
2015
Assets
Current and other assets
Deferred outflows of resources
Capital assets, net

Total Assets & Deferred Outflo\r's

$ 15,914,705

Busines

201,1

s 16,428,633

$

154,369
26,1 9 r ,788

e

2014

1,926,046
2t

2t.6t2,t91

,1',t

1

t9,'131,27

t

5,469,492

$

42,260,862 38,040,827 21,619,088

'l

Activilies

2015

s 23,840,75

otil
20l

20t 5

|

l

$ 21,898,125

t6,903,6'19

176.140
45,923,059

22,373,17t

69, 939,950 60..111,998

38,515,873

Liabilities
Other liabilities
Long-term debt

Total Liabilities

3,384,r 90

2,052,988

| 9, t 82,3 3?

19,883,876

t 1,t21,623

10,355,499

6,245,855
10,303,960

30.239,1'7 5

22,566.527 21,936,864

r3.983,288

I1,6 79,762 16,549,81s

11,6r6,626

20,268,968

t1 ,25't .526

Net Position
Net investnrent in capital asscts
Restricted lor debt service
Restricted lbr capital projects
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

8,693,312

2,86

t.324,263

t,665

'7,667,954 I1,575,656

9,589,s',72

3,3',17,25t

646,07 5

541,3'.70

646,0',7 5

541,370

4,028,969
6,325,979

3,994,414

4,028,969

3,994,4l4

u,446 ,123

5.004,062

3,900,225 2,120,144

$ 19,694,33s $ r6,103,963 $ 13,695,800
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1,103,837

$ 10.693 ,,109
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CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Governmental Activities
20r5
2014
Program revenues:
Charges for services

$

Operating grants/contributions
Capital grants/contributions
General revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Sales taxes

Frarlchise Taxes
Special events

& fundraising

Other
Total revenues

3 ,'t

5s

,293

$

2,082,964

214,115

6t,432

625,23'1

2,403,093

Total

Business-type Activities
2015
2014
$

7,5r8,33r

$

6,r54.311

2014

2015

$

45,289

ll,273,624
214,t t5

$

8,231

,2',7

s

61,432
2,403.093

670,526

3,'139,84t
603,949

3,333,015

3,'.|39,841

505,221

364,',l63

320,805

22t,696

245,163

21'7,124

572,5'10

603,949
364,763
221,696
256,594

9,',742,0t8

9,524,263

1,170,613

1,203,5',7 6

1.170,613

84,853

88,531

84,853

88,531

1,453,417

t,2t3,416

|,453,471

r,2t3.4t6

529,067

'708,220

529,06',1

708.220

824,527

725,922

824,52',7

1,1t4.266

806,191

886,212

448,202
134,8t5
202,699
26,869
'/2,326

1.t14,266
886,212

39,4'70
7,603,090

11,703
6,166,014

3,333,015
505.221
320,805

245,t63
584,2't3

17,345,108

t5

,690.2'7'7

Expenses:

Administration
Judicial
Fire and emergency services
Development seryices
Public works
Police department
Parks and recreation

t04

Library

140,

Infrastructure

198,868

Main street project

70,510

Bond issuance costs
Interest and fiscal charges
Water- Sewer and Sanitatioo Services

635,090

7rs qr)
806. r9

r

448.202

140,104

134,815

198,868

202,699
26,869

70,510

'12,326

585,469

4,28,1,809

3,496,182

'7,107,587 6,2t6,236 4,284,809

3,496,182

2,634,431

3,308,027

2,669,232

395,000

348,050

3,029,431

3,656,077

2,923,281

I

16,103,963

12,447,886

r0,693,409

Prior period adjustment

560,941

Total Expenses

I,203,5'76

635,090
4,284,809

585,469
3,496,'t82.

tt,392,396

9,713,018

Excess (deficiency)

bctbre translirs
TransJers

Change in Net Positiotr
Net Position - October

Net Position - September 30

3,318,281

(395,000)

5,952,712

s,917,259

2,32t,182

5,952,712

5,977,259

8,372,227

26.797,372

20,820,1t3

(348,050)

79,1l0

$ 19,694,335 $ 16,103,963 $ 13,695,800 $ 10,693,409

640,051

$

33,390,135

$

26,797,372

CITY OF CEI,TNA, TEXAS
COMPARATIVE BAI,ANCE SHEETS
GOVERNMENTAI- FUNDS

SEftEMBER

30, 2015 and 2014

Gencral

Total
Governmental Funds

Capital

Debt
Service

2[t

2015

Projects

I

Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents

$

6.r06.s62

Investment in Texpool

$

666,506

$

$

2.3'7 5

10.091.871

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Sales taxes rcceivable

105,443

6,773,068

$

3,892,934

2,3'.7 5

2.375

10,091.873

14,161.704

105,,143

96.030

Property taxes receivable, net

32.335

38.331

4'1.950

EMS receivablc

30.587

30,587

30.586

Crants receivable

300,000

300,000

Other receivables

48.O22

48,022

63.056

Prepaid items

19.94t

19,941

20.78,1

400.000

400,000

400.000

38.916

38.916

Due from other funds
Due from component units

Total Assets

$

5.996

7,084,181

$

672,502

$

10,091,873

$

17,848,556

,15.5

$

82

18,76r,001

Liahilities
Accounts payablc
Accrucd cxpcnscs

331.239

Escrowed lirnds

496.700

'l'otal l,iabilities

524.9

99,968

20.218
|

538.370

t5

496,700

Duc to olher linds
Uncarncd rcvcnuc

'712.149

380.910

l5l

99.815

.5lll.26l

2,378.O19

2,398,29',7

2.198.297

3l l,0ri3

1.829,346

166.320
4,227,902

20,431 3,070,012 5,536,460

2.416.017

Defi'rred lnllrrvs of Resources
Unavailablc propeny taxes receivable

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

12.315

5.996

Ilt.BI

53.306

32,3-r5

5,996

-1ti.-1-11

5.1.306

t9.91t

20.7IH.00

7.021,86t

t0.880.,163

Fund Ilalances
Nonspendablc:
Prepaids

t9.9.11

Restric(ed for:

Capital improvements

7.021.861

Debt service

6,16.075

Unassigned

4.5lt 5.lt

Total Fund Balances

lJ

lt

646,075

541,3?0

4.585,888

3,037,t'76

646,075 7,021,861 12,273,765 t4,479,793

4,605,tt29

'lirtal Liahilities, Delerred Inflows of
Rr:sources. and Fund Ralances

$

7,084,1rir

17

$

672,s02

$

10,091,873

$

l7,ta48,ss6

$

18,761,00r

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Comparative Statements ofReyenues, Expenditures, and ChsDges in Futrd Balances
Governme[tal Funds
Years Etrding September 30, 2015 and 2014

Gencral
Fund

Rf,Vf,NUES:

s

Ad i?lorem taxes
Franchise taxes

Capitrl

Totrl

Projects
Fund

Governrnentsl Funds

Fund

2,531,t23

$

20t5

$

1,217,693

364.163

Sales tax

2014

3,?54.816
364.763

s

603,949

I,161,856

Permits and inspection fees
Component unit contributions
Development fees

Fte depanment and EMS

Debt
Service

120,000

1.767.856

320,000
924,249

200,000

924,249
241,005
254,370

fe€s

Fines
Special eveots and donations
Park fees

Other inmm€
Interest
Federal, state and local grants
Total Revenues

196,'t 53

254,370

r55,962
305,430

22t,696

602,626
92.349
40,609

602.626
4,85 8

l4

8,084,709

1,422,551

66.434
205.587
212,021

239,739

241,005

22t,696

314,1

3,314,591
320,805
505,221
1.321,510
170,000

169,000

9,119,281

296,867
90.124
2,404,25E
9,{90,560

r,133,574

t,t06,865

84,853
1,316,275

r.083,464

I I I,90

r

519,701

EXPENDITURES:
Administration
Judicial

t,133,574
84,853
1,316,275

Fire and emergency services
Dev€lopmenl services

Public works
Police department
Parks and Recreation

524.112

524.712

702,862

806.788

806.?88

t,046,t60

1.046.t60
667,908
r40,857
70,510

505,659
770,254
443,625
r35.315
26,869

667,908
t 40,857
70,510

Library
Main street proiect
Capital outlay

88,53 r

1,t22,728

4,130,623

5,253,351

t,421,915

Debt Service:

Principal relirement

6',78,366

lnterest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance costs

669,480

fxpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds fiom sale ofcapital assets
Proceeds liom issuance of bonds
Operaling transflrs in (out)
Net Oth€r Financing Sources (Uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balaDce. Ocbbcr I
Fund balance, Srptember 30

5r0,445

4,130,623

12,392,t34

7,4?8,833

(3,858,602)

(2,6r1,s53)

2,01I,121

6r 0,693

'72.326

Total Expenditures
Excess (Dcficfunry) of Reverues Over

678,366
669,480

6,9t4,365

1,347,8.16

l,t 70,l44

74,105

12,525

\2,525

t5.279
3,251 .185

365,000
311,52s

30,000
30,000

1,547,t69

104,705

(3,858,602)

541,370

t0,880,463

3,05?,960

$ 4,605,829 $

18

646,075 $

395-000

407,525

7,021,861

s

348,050
3.620,81d

(2,206,028)

5,632,54t

14,479,793

8,841,252
t4,479,793

12,21

3,765 $

CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF FT]ND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2015 and 201,1
2015

20t4

Enterprise Fund
Water & Sewer
Activities

Enterprise Fund
Water & Sewer
ActiYities

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Invcstment iB TexPool
Investment in TexPool. restricted tbr capital projects
Accounts receivable. nct
Due from other funds

Total current assets

3,939,490

s

943,305

3.174

t,t'72,r23

835,000
r,088.972
2,398.291

692.394

663,3',73

2,398,29't
5,869,492

8,26,1,933

Noncurrent Assets:
Net pcnsion assct

61,1

l3

30,1.1

l5

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciablc land
Non-depreciable construction in progress
Depreciable capital assets. net
Capital Assets, net

154,115

1.6'7'7.529

16,149.564
16,903,679

t7,749,62'.7

t9,731,271

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows - related to pensions
Total defe[ed outflows of resources

21,171

21,771

$

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

28,079,088

$

22,173,171

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Bonds payable - current

426,318
26,384

lnfrastructure advance from CISD - current

108.089

414,352
65.725
808,862

8,18,875

9 t

.139

l,eases payable - current

Accrued interestpayable
Meter deposits payable
Unearned revenue
Escrow deposits
Due to other funds

5t,162

Total current liabilities

305.922

63,568
242.632

|,288;779

537,986

762,500
400,000

,100,000

4,245,882

2,624,564

296,465
18,704

4t t.1t'7

Infrashucture advance from CISD - lons-term
Leases payable - long-term

Rll )17

9,0,1,1.081

Total non-current [iabilities

10,137,406

9,455,198

Total liabilities

14,383,288

12,079,762

l 1,575.656

q 5Rq 57)

a

Bonds payable - long{erm

Net Position
Net investment ill capital assets
Restricted for capital projects, net of related debt
($2,966.008 each, 2015) ($3,041.392 each, 2014)
Unrestricted

$

Total Net Position

19

2.120,r44

13,695,800

$

1.103,837
10,693,409

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2015

2014

Operating Revenues:
Water sales
Sewer sales
Garbage fees
Penalties
Tap and reconnect fees
Impact fees
Other revenues
Total Operating Revenues

s

3,489,083

$

1,409,070
405,433
73,654
832,360
l ,l t 3,065
195,666
7,519,331

2,780,983
I

,160,403

402,5t4
58,682
633,765
977,688
140,276
6,154,311

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits

545,287
154 711

Garbage fees

Materials and supplies
Postage
Repairs and facility maintenance
General insurance
Utilities and telephone
Water purchases and related fees
Depreciation & amortization
Other expense
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

260,fi3
29,282
182,1 13

r4,402
254,'t'18
1,606,698
598,135

79,333
3,924,974

$ 3,593,457 S

(Continued)

20

373,648
368,754
104,757
30,120
177,015
11,914
252,189
1,344,283
456,509
28,040
3 147

9

3,007,082

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Comparative Statements
Proprietary Fund
Years Ended September 30, 2015 and 2014

2014

2015

Non-operating revenues (expenses):

s

Interest income
Gain on disposal ofcapital assets
Interest and fiscal charges
Bond issuance costs
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

39,470

$

10, r 53

1,550
(3 19,81 l

)
(40,124)
(320,465)

Income before contributions and transfers

3,272,992

Capital contribution
Transfers out to other funds

45,289
(39s,000)

Change in net position
Net position, October I
Prior period adjustment
Net position, September 30

2,669,232

(348 ,050)

2,923,281

2,321,182

10,693,409
79,r r0

8,372,227

_q_13,6es,!99_

21

(297,267)
(s2,286)
(337,8s0)

_q_!0,6e3,192_

BASIC FINANCIAL STATENIENTS

CITY OF CELINA. TELdS
STATENIENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30. 2015
Primarn Governm€nt
Governmental

Business-type

Actiritics

Activities

Component

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

S

6,7',t3,068

)

lnvestment in Texpool
Propefiy taxes receivable, net

3,939,490

s

175

S

10,712,ss8

105,443

Accounts receivable. Ilet
Other receivahles

30,587
379,994
38,916

Due tiom component units
Prepaid items

1,08tt,972

t,998,297

433,330

6

t,l t3

Property taxes receivable, net
Investment in Texpool resricted for capital projects

494,443
10,091,873

10,09r,873

Cash and cash equivalents

I05.442

19,559
379,994
3 8,916

1,1

19,941

19,941

Net pension asset
Restricted assetsi

423,573

3t,479
105,443

(1,998,297)

Intemal balances

$

3,174

3t,4',79

Sales taxes receivable

Units

Total

5,996
815,000

5,996
83s,000

Capital assets:
Land

2,295,651

304,1l5

Constructioil in progress

1,22',1,615

1,67',7,s29

22,668,522

t1 '7 49 621

Caprtal assets, net

Dcf€rred oumows of resources:
Delerred outllows - rclated to pensions
Total Assets and deferred outflows ofresources

2,s99,166
2,905,141
40,418,149

154,369

21,77t

176,140

12,260,862

27,679,088

69,939,950

Accounts payable

7t2,149

426,3t8

1,138,467

Accrued expenses
Uneam€d revenue
Meter deposits payable

284,196

26,384

310,580

,288,779

3,1 I 8,125

305,922
162,500

1,259,200

529,015

Liabilities

1,829,346

Escrow deposits
Due to primary govemmcnt

1

496,100

30s,922
38,916

Payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest

61,199

51,762

I13,561

751.125

848,875

1,600,000

108,089

108,089

9,822,237
18,704

28,253,449
18,704

296,465

296,465

13,983,288

36,549,815

i,575,656

20,268,968

Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds payable

Capital leases
Infrastructure advance from CISD
I)ue in more than one year:
Bollds payable

t8,431,212

Capital leases

Inkasuucture advance from CISD

'l'otal Liahilitios

22,566,521

38,916

Net Position
Net investment in capital assels
Restricted lor deht service

8,693,312

1

646,07 s

646,07 5

of related debt ($1,683,861)
Restricted for capital projects (52,966,008) net
of related debt (S2,966,008)

4,028,969

4,028,969

Unrestricted

6,325,919

Restricted for

cap

ital proj ects

Total Net Position

($ 5,7 I 2,8

3

0) nel

$

2,t20,141

19,694,33s $

Ihe accompanying notes are an

inleg ral part

23

11,69s,800 $

of lhese rinancial stalements

8.446.t23

33,390,135 $

490.099
490,099

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Ycar Ended September 30. 20t 5
Net (Expense) Revenue

and Cha[ges in Net Position

Program Revenues
Charges

For
I,'unctions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Administration
Judicial
Fire and emergency services
Development services
Public works
Police departmcnt
Parks and recreation

Expcnses

$

Serviccs

1,170,6r3

$

Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Grants and

Covernmental

Business-fype

Total
Primary

Contributions

Activitics

Activitics

Government

$

s

Capital

$

84,853
1,453,47'1

188,364

529,067
824,52'.1

924,249
l,'76'1,856

|,t t4,266

2',72.t98

886,212

602,626

12,950
205.23'7
1,165

r70,6 r 3)

S

(l,170,613)

(84,8s3)
(1.252,163)
395,182

(84,853)
(1,2s2,163)

1,148,566

1,148,566

(840,903)

(840,903)
(140, r04)
(r 98,868)

t36,414

140,104

Infrastrucrure
Main street projecl
Economic development
Interest and fiscal charges

198,868

136,414
(140,104)
(198,868)

70,510

(70,5r0)

(7o,5lo)

(43s,090)
(2,512,9421

(435,090)

Business-type activities:
Water and sewer serviccs
Total business-type activities

Total all activities

s

395,182

Library

Total goverrlmental activities

420,000

( 1,

Aggregate
Component
Units

(s 17,533)

635,090

200,000

7.107,581

3,755,293

4,284,809

7,518.33 |

4,28.t,809 7,51{,t,fl I
$ 11,392,396 $ 11,273,624 $

214,1l5

2l4,ll5 $

625,237

(2.512,9421

1,278,8

,r5,289

l
3,278,8rr

r

3.278,81I
218 8t I

I

45,289

3,278,8r

670,526 $ (2,s12,942\ $

General revenues:
Ad valorem taxes

$

l

76s,869 $

3,'139,841

3,739,841

601,949

603,949

364,763

364,'163

Special events and l'undraising

221,696

22t,696

Miscellaneous income and conlributions
Unrestricted investmcnt camings
Transfers
Total general revenues and trarlsfers

105,223

Sales taxes
Franchise taxes

Change in net position

Net Position-beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Net Position-end of year

s

I I 1,901

39,4',70

395,000
5,512,l7-3

(395,000)
(155,530)

934
3.694

5,186,843

606.418

88,885

5,952,1tL

16,103,963

10,693,409

560,94r

79,r r0

26,797,372
610 05r

The accompalying notcs arc an intcgral parl ollhese t-rnancial statcmcnts
24

13,695,800

601,790

l5l,37t

2,923,281

s

(517,531)

105.223

3,029,431

19,694,315

(sl7,sl3)

$ 33,190,135 $

,r0

t,214

490,099

CITY OF CELI\-A. TEXAS
BALA-\CE SHEET

GO!'ERNME\TAL FUNDS
September 30, 2015

Total
Cenerrl

4!!9!!

$ 6,t06,562

Cash and cash equivalents

Capitsl

S€nice

Projects

$

666,506

Governmental
Funds

$

S

2,315

Investment in Texpool
Cash and cash €quivalents - restricted
Sales taxes receivable
Property taxes rec€ivable, net
Granl receivable
EMS receivable, net
Other receivables

6,773,068
2,375

r0,09r,873

t0,091,8?3

105,443

t05,443
32,335
300,000

38,331

5,994)

300,000
30,5{l?
44,022

30,51r7

48,022

Prepaid items
Du€ from olher funds

19.941

19,94t

400,000

400,000

3ti,9l6

Due from compoDent urils

Totrl

Debt

$

Assets

38,916

s

7,08,{,181

672.502

$

10,091,8?3

$

l?

Lirbilities
380,910

112,149

20.278

2,37n,019

20,111

3l1,083
3,070,0r2

99,968
496,700
2,398,291
1,429,346
5.536,d60

33r,239

Accounls payable
Accrued salaries and benefils
Escrowed funds
Du€ ro otber funds

r5l

99,815
496,700
1,518,263

Uneamed revenue

Total Lirbllities

2,446,011

Dcf€rred Inflows of Resources

32,335
32,335

Unavailable propcrty taxes recei!able
Total Defcrred Inflows of Resources

5,996

38,331

5,996

38,3-11

Fund Belrnces
Nonspendable:
Prepaids
Restricred for:

19,94

19,941

r

7,02r,861

CapiulProjects
Debl Service
Unassigned

7,02t,861

646,075

646,0',75

646,0?5

7,02t.861

4,5n5,8{t8
12,273,165

$

17,t4t,556

4,51{5,8n8

4,605,829

Totsl Fund Brlrnc€s
Totsl Lilbillties. Deferred Inflons of Resources

$ 7,0t4,1U

snd Fund B.lstrces

$

672,502

$

r0,091,t73

Governm€htil fund belences rs present€d ebove:

12.273,165

Auroubts pr€sented for gov€rnm€ntrl sctivities itr the statement
net position arc different because:

of

Caprtal assets reported in rhe sralemenl ofnel posil;on
are not financial resources and are not reporled in the fund balance sheet.

26, t91,788

assets (receivables) are not available to pay currentperiod
expendilures and therefore are deferred in the funds- These include deferred
property laxes of $38,331 afld finesreceivableof $31,116.

Oficr long-lerm

69,417

Net pension assets ($433,330) and the related deferred outflows ofresources ($ 154,369)
are not available to pay current-period expenditures and thereforc arc not
recorded in the funds.

587,699

lnterest due on long-term debt is recorded as accrued interest payable
in the statemenl ofnel posilion but does no! become a liability on ihe
fund slatements unlilthe date due-

(61.799)

tong-term liabilities are repo(ed in the statement ofnet
posirion bul they are nol due and palable ia the curenl period
and therefore are nol reporad as liabilities in fie fund balance sheet.

(19,366,565)

s

Nrt Position of Govrrnmtntal Activiti€s

The

a@mpanyng

.olB

are

a.

nlegBl parl of lhee 6na.cial stalements.

19,691,335

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Statement ofRev€nues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2015
General
Fund

Capital

Debt
Senice

Projects

Fund

Fund

Toral
Governmental
Funds

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes

S

2,531,123

Franchise taxes

364,'7 63

Sales tax
Permits and iNpection lees

603,949

$

1,217,693

$

S

364,763

603,949
1,767,856
320,000
924,249

1,767,856

Component unit contributions
Development fees

120,000

200,000

o)a )aq

Fire department and EMS revenues

24r,005
254,310
221,696

Fines
Special evems and donations
Park fees and do[ations

241,005
254,3',70

221,696
602,626
92,349

602,626

q, t4q

Olher income

hlerest

40,609

Federal, state & local grants

4,858

66.434

3\4,1t4

Total Revetrues

3,754,816

205,587

8,084,709

212,02t

1,422,551

I 11,901

t9,701
9,779,281
5

Expenditures:
Current:
I,133,574

Administration
Judicial
Fire and emergency services
Dgvelopment servic€s
Public works
Polic€ department
Parks and r€creation

|,133.5',74

84.853

84,853

I,3t6,2',75
524,'7

Library
Main street project
Capital Outlay

|,316.27

t2

806,788

806,788

1,046,160

1,046,160

667,908

667,908

140,857

140,857

70,5t0

70,510
1,122.728

4.r30,623

Debt Service:
Principal

678,366
669,480

Interest and liscal charggs

Total Erpenditures

71,705

I,t 70,344

5,253,151

678.366
669,480

t,347,846 4,130,623

6,914,365

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

5

524.7t2

(3,858,602)

12,392,834

(2,613,553)

Other Financing Sources (Uscs):
Proceeds Aom sale ofassets

t2,525

Operating transfers in (out)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)

365,000

Nct change in fund balances
Fund balance, October I

Fund balance, September 30

30,000
30.000

311

$

395,000
,107.525

1,547,869

r04,705

(3,8s8,602)

(2,206,028)

3,057,960

541,370

10,880,463

t4,179 797

4,605,829

$

646,075

The accdtpanying notes are an int€ral part of these fnancid statemeots,
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$ 7,02r,861 $

12,273,76s

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Reconcilation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30,2015
$ (2,206,028)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, while in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlay of $5,253,35 I exceeded
depreciation expense of $(673,757).

4.519.594

In the statement of actvities, the gain on the disposal of assets is reported,
but in the governmental funds, proceeds from the sale increase current
financial resources. The change in net position differs from the change in
fund balance by the net book value of the assets disposed.
Proceeds from the issuance of long{erm debt provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term

liabilities in the statement ofnet position. Repayment of debt principal is
an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. This is the amount of
debt retired for the year $678,366, less new bonds issued ($-0-),

678,366

Changes in the liabilities for compensated absences do not require the use

(33,861)

of current resources and therefore are not recorded in the funds.
Changes in long term amounts for net pension assets ($69,559) and the

related deferred inflows of resources related to pensions $96,317
are not recorded in the funds.

26,758

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This includes
the change in deferred inflows from ad valorem taxes of ($ 14,975) and

(49,788)

the change in fines receivable $17,828 and EMS receivables $(52,641).
Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use

of

current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. These include the amortization ofbond premiums,
$23,173; and the decrease in accrued interest on debt $11,217.

Change in net position - governmental activities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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3.1,390

$

3,029,431

CITY OF CT]LI\.\, 1'EXAS
STATEMENT O}' FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY TUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 20I5
Enterprise Fund
Water & Sewer
Activities
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

$

Investment in TexPool
Investment in TexPool restricted for capital projects
Accounts receivable. net
Due tiom othet funds

Total current

3,939,490
3,'l'74
835,000
1,088,972

2,398,297
8,264,933

assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Net pension

6l

asset

ll3

Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable land
Non-depreciable construction in progress
Depreciable capital assets, net
Capital Assets, nct

304,1

l5

t.677 .529
t'7

,'749,62'7

19,731,211

Dcfcrrcd outllows of rcsourccs:
2t,771
2t,771

Def'crred outtlows - related to pensions

'l'otal dcfcrred outflows of resources

s

Total assets and deferred outflows of resourccs

28,079,088

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Bonds payable - current
Infrastructure advance fl om CISD - current
Leases payable - current
Accrued interest payable
Meter deposits payable
Uneamed revenue
Escrow deposits
Due to other lunds

426,318
26,384
848,875

r08,089
27

.253

51,7 62

ln( or)
.288,179
7 62,500
400,000
4,245,882
|

Total currcnt Iiabilities
Infrastructure advancc flom CISD - long-terrn
Leases payable - Iong+erm

296.465
18,704
o R)) )17

Bonds payable - long-term

Total non-current liabilities

10, r37,,106

'Iirtal liabilities

14,383,288

Net Position

l 1.575,656

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects ($2,966,008), net of related debt (S2.966,008)
Unrestricted

s

Total Net Position
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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2.120.144
r3,695,800

City of Celina, T€xas
Statement ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2015
Enterprisc Fund
Water & Scrver
Activities
Opcrating revenues:
Water sales

s

3,489,083

I,409,070
405,433
73,654
832,360

Sewer sales
Garbage fees
Pcnalties

Tap and reconnect fees
hnpact f'ees
Other revenues
Total Operating Revenues

l

,l r 3,065
195 666

7,518,131

0perating expenses:
Salaries and benefits

545,287

Garbage fees

354,733
260,113

Materials and supplies

lo )4,

Postage
Repairs and facility maintenance

l 82,1 13

General insurance
Utilities and telephone
Water purchases and related fees

14,402
254,778
1,606,698

Depreciation & amortization
Othcr expense
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

598, r 35

79,333
3,921,87 4

$

3,593,457

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
lnterest income

39.470

Gain on sale ofcapital assets
Interest and fiscal charges

(319,81 r)

(40.124)

Bond issuance costs

(320,465)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

3,272,992
45,289
(395,000)

Capital contribution
Operating Transfers in (out)
Change in net position
Net position, October

2,923,281

I

Prior period adjustment
Net position, September 30
The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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10,693,409

79,1l0

$

13,695,800

CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2015

nterprise Fund
Water & Sewer
Activities

E

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$

7,872,546
(2,769,486)
(588,402)
.1,514,658

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
63,290
(395,000)

Change in custom er deposrts

Operating transfers (to) from other funds
Net cash provided (used) for noncapital financing activities

(33 1,7 1 0)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets

(3,42s,728)
45,289
762,500

Capital contributions
Change in escrow deposits
Bond proceeds
Bond issance costs
Principal payments - bonds payable
Principal payments - other obligations
Capital lease proceeds

1,645,000

(40,124)
(808,862)
(98,002)
56,83 3

Principal payments - capital leases
Interest paid on bonds payabb and other long-term obligatims
Net cash provided (used) by capital and

10,876)
(349,s8 s)
(

related fi nancing activities

2,223,555)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net redemptions (purchases) of investments
Investment income
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

qo7 1?7
39,470
1,036,792

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, October

2,996,18 5

I

943,305

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30

S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financialstatements.
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3.939,490

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
Year Ended September 30, 2015

Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities
Enterprise Fund

Water & Sewer
Activities

s

Operatin g income

3,593,4s7

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:
598.135
(396.578)

Depreciation and am ortization
(lncrease) decrease in accounts receivable (net)
(lncrease) decrease in net pensionasset

9.8

t0

(lncrease) decrease in deferred ottflows or resources
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses

(

Increase (decrease) in uneamed revenues

150 193

13,584)
r 1.966

(39.341)

921.201

Total Adjustmonts

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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4,514,658

City of Celina, Texas
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2015

1.

Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements ofthe City of Celina, Texas and its component units, Celina Economic
Development Corporation and Celina Community Development Corporation, collectively
identified as the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units. The Govemmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing govemmental accounting
and hnancial reporting principles.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and
practices ofthe City are discussed in subsequent sections ofthis note. The remaining notes are
organized to provide explanations, including required disclosures, of the City's financial
activities for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2015.

(A)

Reporting Entity and Related Organizations

The City is a municipal corporation govemed by an elected mayor and six member City Council.
The City provides general administration, public works, police and judicial, and fire and
emergency services to its residents. The Council hires a City Manager for day to day operations.

The City Council has the authority to make decisions, appoint administrators and managers,
significantly influence operations; and has the primary accountability for fiscal matters. The
City is not included in any other govemmental "reporting entity" as defined by Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

In

evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in
the reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statements No. 14 and 39
as amended by GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, an amendment
of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. .14. These statements define the reporting entity as the
primary govemment and those component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable. In addition, component units may be included in the reporting entity based on the
nature and significance of the relationship with the primary govemment, or based on being
closely related or financially integrated with the primary govemment. Based on these criteria,
the City has the following component units at September 30,2015:
Discretelv Presented Component Units:

Celina Economic Development Corporation (CEDC) - CEDC serves all citizens of the
govemment and is govemed by a board appointed by the City Council. The City Council may
remove the CEDC board for cause. CEDC is a nonprofit corporation govemed by Section 4A of
the Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979 and organized for the public purpose of aiding,
promoting and furthering economic development within the City of Celina, Texas.
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l.

Introduction and Summar]'of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
Celina Community Development Corporation (CCDC) - CCDC serves all citizens of the
govemment and is governed by a board appointed by the City Council. The City Council may
remove the CCDC board for cause. CCDC is a nonprofit corporation govemed by Section 48 of
the Texas Development Corporation Act of 1979 and organized for the public purpose of the
promotion and development of industrial and manufacturing enterprises to promote and encourage
emplol,rnent and the public welfare of the City of Celina, Texas.
Neither CEDC nor CCDC prepare separate financial statements.

(B)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Gov ernme nlw ide

fi nanc ial s tal ements

The govemment-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement
of activities. These statements report financial information for the City as a whole excluding
fiduciary activities. The primary govemment and component units are presented separately within
the financial statements with the focus on the primary govemment. Individual funds are not
displayed but the statements distinguish govemmental activities, generally supported by taxes and
City general revenues, from business-type activities. generally financed in whole or in part with
fees charged to external customers.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues
directly connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and
may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and
program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (l)
charges for services which report fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users ofthe City's
services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including
restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which frmd the acquisition,
construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to developers. These revenues are
subject to extemally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and other revenue sources
not properly included with program revenues are repofied as general revenues.
Fund financial statements

Fund financial statements are provided for govemmental and proprietary funds. Major individual
govemmental funds and proprietary funds are reported in separate columns with composite
columns for non-major funds.

(C)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The City's reporting entity applies all relevant Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

JJ

l.

Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement Jbcus
and the accrual basis of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of
intemal activity (between or within funds). Proprietary fund financial statements and financial
statements of City component units also report using this same measurement focus and basis of
accounting although internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded
when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless ofthe timing of the
related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year for which they are levied
while grants are recognized when grantor eligibility requirements are met.

Govemmental fund financial statements are prepared using the current financial resources
nteasurement focls and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay cument liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond and capital lease principal and
interest which are reported as expenditures in the year due.

Major revenues sources susceptible to accrual include: sales and use taxes, property

taxes,
franchise taxes, grant revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues are recognized
when cash is received.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses
related to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for the
proprietary fund are charges to customers for water and sewer sales or services. Principal operating
expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include administrative expenses and
depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the
financial statements.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

(D)

Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental Funds
The City reports the following major govemmental funds

General Fund

-

reports as the primary operating fund of the

City. This fund is used to

account for all financial resources not reported in other funds.

Debt Semice FuLrd - accounts for the accumulation of f,rnancial resources for the palment of
principal and interest on the City's general obligation debt. The City annually levies ad
valorem taxes restricted for the retirement of general obligation bonds, capital leases, and
interest. This fund reports all such ad valorem taxes collected.
Capital Projects Fund - accornts for the financing and acquisition of major capital projects.
Fund resources are provided primarily through bond sales and interest eamings.
34
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Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
Proprietary Funds
The City reports the following major Proprietary fund:

'Ilater

and Sewer Fund
sewer utilities services.

(E)

- accornts for the operating activities ofthe City's water and

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

Cash and Investments
The City maintains cash and investment pools which are shared by the various govemmental funds.
In addition, non-pooled cash and investments are separately held and reflected in the respective
individual funds. These pooled and non-pooled cash and investment pools are displayed on its
respective balance sheet as "cash and cash equivalents" and "investment in TexPool."
Investments are reported at fair value determined as follows. Short-term, highly liquid investrnents
are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash deposits are reported at the carrying
amount which reasonably estimates fair value.
Bank certificates ofdeposit are carried at cost which approximates fair value.

The City reporting entity considers highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with an
original maturity ofthree months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventories and Prepaids
Inventories consisting of expendable supplies held for consumption in govemmental funds are
reported using the expenditure method. Under this method, amounts paid for these items are
reported as expendifures when purchased. Inventories, when material, are recorded at cost stated
on a first-in, first-out basis in the government-wide financial statements.
Prepaid items record payments to vendors that benefit future reporting periods and are reported on
the consumption basis at cost. Prepaid items are similarly reported in govemment-wide and fund
financial statements.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources
Deferred inflows ofresources represent the acquisition of resources that apply to a future period and
so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources (revenue) until that time. Deferred outflows of
resources represent a consumption of resources that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an outflow ofresources (expense) until that time.
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Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization
The City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are
stated at historical cost, or if historical cost is not available, they are stated at estimated historical
cost. These assets are comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. The
City maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Donated assets
are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost ol
$5,000 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the
cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the
resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations.
Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings
Road infrastructure
Water & sewer infrastructure & rights
Vehicles
Fumiture. machinery. and equipment

40
15 - 50

20-40
5
5

The City has not capitalized any interest costs in the carrying value of capital assets.

Long-term Debt, Deferred Bond Credits, and Bond Discounts/Premiums
In the govemment-rvide, proprietary, and component unit financial statements, outstanding debt is
reported as liabilities. Bond discounts or premiums are capitalized and amortized over the terms of
the respective bonds using a method that approximates the straight-line method.
The govemmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other
financing sources ofthe current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.
Pcn sio

ns

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the Fiduciary Net
Position of the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) and additions to/deductions from
TMRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
TMRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is
repofied for the employee, which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
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lntroduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

-

continued

Compensated Absences

Full-time employees eam vacation leave for each month of work performed. Progressive accrual
of vacation leave is based on the number of years the individual is employed by the City. After
completion of a probationary period of employment, accrued vacation leave is paid upon
termination of employment. Full-time employees also earn sick leave time. Unused sick leave is
not paid upon termination of employment.
Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the govemment-wide, proprietary and component
unit financial statements. Govemmental funds report only matured compensated absences payable
to currently teminating employees. These are included in wages and benefits payable.

Fund Equitv
The City implemented GASB Statement 54 standards for the classification of fund balances in the
governmental funds. The fund balances of govemmental funds are defined as follows:
Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form, such
as inventory or prepaid items or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.
Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
govemments.
Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of
the City Council. The City Council is the highest level ol decision making authority for the City.
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through a formal resolution of the
City Council.
Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but are
intended to be used for specific purposes that have been established by the City Council.
Unassigned - all other spendable amounts in the general fund

The City Council delegates the responsibility to assign funds to the City Manager, Director
Finance, or other designee as determined by the Council.

of

When expenditures are incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available
the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. Similarly, committed funds are
considered to have been spent first when there is a choice for the use of less restricted funds, then
assigned and then unassigned funds.
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Introduction and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(F)

-

continued

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assetsi errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City is a participant
in the Texas Municipal League (TML) Employees Health Insurance Fund, Texas Municipal
League Workers' Compensation Joint Insurance Fund (WC Fund) and the Texas Municipal League
Joint Self-Insurance Fund (Property-Liabi lity Fund), a public entity risk pool operated by the Texas
Municipal League Board for the benefit of individual governmental units located within Texas.
The agreement provides that the trust established by TML will be self-sustaining through member
premiums. The City pays annual premiums to TML for worker's compensation, general and auto
liability, property damage, employee dishonesty, public officials liability, and law enforcement
professional liability coverage. The City does not anticipate any material additional insurance cost
assessments as a result of participation in this risk management pool. There were no reductions in
insurance coverage from the pnor year. Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during
any of the past three fiscal years.

(G)

Estimates

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.
The preparation

2

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability
Budgetary Information
The City Manager submits an annual budget to the City Council in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas and the city charter. The budget is presented to the City Council for review, budget
workshops are held with the various City department officials, and public hearings are held to
address priorities and the allocation of resources. Generally in August, the City Council adopts the
annual fiscal year budgets for all City operating funds. Once approved, the City Council may
amend the legally adopted budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated
revenues and appropriations.
Each fund's approved budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted by
source. Expenditures are budgeted by department and class as follows: personnel services and
related fringe benefits, supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay, transfers, and debt
service. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the department level. Within this control
level, management may transfer appropriations between line items. Budget revisions and line item
transfers are subject to final review by the City Council. Revisions to the budget were made
throughout the year.
The budgets for the operating funds are prepared on the cash and expenditure basis. Revenues are
budgeted in the year receipt is expected; and expenditures, which do not include encumbrances, are
budgeted in the year that the liability is to be incurred. The Debt Service Fund budget is prepared
to provide funding for general obligation debt service when liabilities are due for payment. The
budget and actual required supplementary information is presented on these bases. Unexpended
appropriations for annually budgeted funds lapse at fiscal year-end.
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3.

Deposits and In\-estments

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that rn the event ofa bank failure, the City's deposits
may not be retumed or the City will not bc able to recover collateral securities in the possession of
an outside party. The City's policy requires deposits to be fully secured by collateral valued at
market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) insurance. Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an
established record of fiscal health. Collateral agreements must be approved prior to deposit of
fi.inds. The City Council approves authorized depository institutions based on the recommendations
of Crty management.
Deposits of City of Celina, Texas (primaly government) and its component units, CEDC and
CCDC, are fully insured or collateralized rvith securities held by the Ciry or component unit, its
agent. or by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the name ofthe City or
component unit. respectively.
I

nvcstm€nts

During the year ended September 30,2015 thc Cit.v invested only in Texas Local Govemment
Investment Pool l"TexPool"). TexPool is a public tunds investment pool overseen by the Texas
State Comptroller of Public Accounts acting by and through its ful service provider, Federated
Investors is empou'ered to invest funds and act as custodian of investments purchased with local
inveshnent lirnds. Authorized investments of TexPool include obligations of the United States of
America or its agencies, direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, certificates of
deposit and repurchase agreements. At Septembcr 30, 20 15, the carrying amount and fair value of
the City's investment in TexPool u,as $840.5,19. 'fcxPool is rated for credit risk as AAAm and
maintained a weighted average days to maturity ol'40 days at September 30,2015.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. Generally, the City's investing activities are managed under the custody of the
Treasurer 1in his absence the City Managcr). Investinc is performed in accordance with investment
policies adopted by the City Council in compliancc rvith the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA).

City investment policy and the PFIA generally perrnit the City to invest in FDIC insured or fully
collateralized certificates of deposit, fully collateralized repurchase agreements, public funds
investmerlt pools, obligations of the United States of America or its agencies, direct obligations of
the State of Texas, and obligations of agencies, coullties, cities and other political subdivisions of
Texas having becn rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm
and having received a rating of not less than "A" or its equivalent. During the year ended
September 30. 2015, the Cily did not own any typcs ol'securities other than those permitted by the
City investment policy or the Public Funcls Investnrcnt Act.

i9

3.

Deposits and Investments

-

continued

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest
rate changes. City policy generally requires investment maturities to correspond to anticipated cash
flow needs. City policy further states that volatile investment instruments shall be avoided and that
nonmarketable instruments with maturities beyond one month shall not exceed 30 percent of the
portfolio. ln addition, investment maturities shall not exceed the following limits:
Operating funds - 30 days
Capital project funds - corresponding draw schedules
Debt service funds - corresponding payment dates, not to exceed (6) six months
Bond reserve funds - (5) five years

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City's investment
in a single issuer. City policy requires that the risk ofprincipal loss in the portfolio as a whole shall
be minimized by diversiffing investment tlpes to eliminate the risk of loss from over-concentration
of assets in a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities.
For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure ofthe counterparty,
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the
possession of an outside party. The City's policy on safekeeping and custody requires that
investments shall be secured through safekeeping agreements. All investment funds shalt be placed
directly with qualified financial institutions selected through the City's banking procurement
process. All transactions shall be executed on a delivery versus payment basis.

4.

Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts, and Unearned Revenue

Proprietary Fund Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts and Unearned Revenue
Significant receivables include amounts due from customers primarily for utility services. These
receivables are due within one year. The Proprietary Fund reports accounts receivable net ol an
allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of uncollectible amounts. The allowance
amount is estimated using accounts receivable past due more than 60 to 90 days. Following is the
detail olthe Proprietary Fund receivables and the related allowance for uncollectible accounts:
Accounts receivable, gross
Less: allowance for uncollectible accounts
Net accounts receivable

$ 1,105.409

(

16.437)

$1-088J12

The City has recorded uneamed revenue of $1,288,779 water and sewer impact fees and sewer
capacity fees that have been collected, but are awaiting expenditure for the designated purpose.
Property Taxes Receivable, Unearned Revenues, and the Property Tar Calendar
The City's propefty tax is levied each October I on the assessed value listed as of the prior January
for all real property located within the City. Appraised values are established by the Collin
County Central Appraisal District at 100% ofmarket value. As ofJanuary 1,2014,allreal property
was assessed at a net taxable value of$550,278,293.

I
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Receivables, Uncollectible Accounts, and Unearned Revenue - continued

The property tax rate for the year ended September 30, 2015 was .645 per $100 of the assessed
valuation on taxable property. Following is a summary of the overall tax rate as levied by fund:
Maintenance and operations-General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Total tax rate

4327
2123
.6450

In the govemmental fund financial statements, property taxes are recorded as receivables in each of
the respective funds on the tax levy date with appropriate allowances for estimated uncollectible
amounts. At fiscal year-end, property tax receivables represent delinquent taxes. If delinquent
taxes are not paid within 60 days ofyear-end, they are recorded as deferred inflows ofresources.

In the govemment-wide financial statements, property taxes receivable and related revenue include
all amounts due the City with a l0% allowance for estimated uncollectible amounts regardless of
when cash is received. Over time substantially all property taxes are collected.
The City's full year property tax calendar is as follows
October l-Full year tax ler,y assessed for the current fiscal year-taxes are due and payable.
January l-Tax lien is attached to property to secure the payment of taxes, and penalty and
interest as applicable.
February l-Penalty and interest charges begin to acclue on unpaid past due taxes.
July 1-Taxes become delinquent and are subject to attorney fees incurred for collection.
Allowance

for Uncollectible

Taxes

The City records an allowance for uncollectible property taxes in order to estimate the amount of
taxes that will ultimately prove to be uncollectible. Management has determined that an allowance
in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the property taxes receivable in each of the applicable fund
tlpes should be adequate to provide for uncollectible property taxes. No provisions are made for
uncollectible sales tax receivables, or grants receivable as management estimates that these amounts
will be fully collectible.
Fines and Court Costs Receivable and Related Allowances

In the govemmental fund financial statements, fines and coufi costs are recognized as revenue on
the cash basis.

In the govemment-wide financial statements, the City records fines and court costs receivable net of
amounts estimated to be uncollectible and net of any amounts that would be due to other
govemmental entities as a result of collection. Management has determined the estimate of
uncollectible fines and court costs through an analysis of actual amounts collected subsequent to
year end. Amounts due to other govemmental entities have been determined based on distribution
requirements ofthe State of Texas.
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4.

Receivables, Uncollectitlle Accounts, and Unearned Revenue - continued
Grants Receivable

Grants receivable were collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year, accordingly, no
allowance for uncollectible amounts has been recorded. These amounts are recorded similarly in
both the governmental fund statements and the govemment-wide financial statements. Grant
revenues are recorded as eamed when eligibility requirements are met. Grant revenues received
prior to meeting grant eligibility requirements are recorded as uneamed revenue.

5.

Capital Assets
The following table provides a summary of changes in capital assets, including assets recorded
under capital leases:
Beginning

GoYernmental Activities

Increases

Decreases

Endin1l

:

Nondepreciable capital assets

:

$

Land

s

2,295,651

RI5 5q6

Constuction in progress
Total nondepreciable capital assets

I 1.1,286

)qq7al7

l.l

2,033,3',13

3,471

1,1,286

229s,651

702,267

I,227,615

'702267

3523,266

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improveme nts
P

arks

9,059,669

le

5,5M,550
10,044,406

|,238,642

Road infrastructure
Vehic

,t17

984,73',7

t 1,238,642

1,131,606

s

Furniture and equipment

<11

24,283

437 t92
|,294,908

305,886

,o

t,239,659

|

Total depreciable capital assets

24,816,279

4,84133'

24,283

29,519,998

Totalcapital assets

27,814,t96

5,955,618

726,550

33,U3,264

6202,04

673,757

24,283

6,8s14'16

Less: accumulated depreciation

Capitalassets, net

$

2r,6 r2,194

$

154,t t4

$

5,281,86r

s

7

a,261

$

26,191,788

Business-Type ActiYities:
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land

$

Construction in progress
Total nondepreciable capital assets

$

150,001

304,115

2,9M,84t

1,52',7,392

2.154,101

|,677,529

3,058,955

I,611,393

2,7 54,704

I,981,644

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improveme nts

Water

& sewer infrastructure

43,769

43,169

t9,92t,723

3,287,438

Vehicles

183,101

91,948

Equipment

334,01 |

1,123,653

Total depreciable capital assets

20482,6M

4,503,039

Totalcapitalassets

23,54t,559

6,180,432

6.63'7 ,8[i0

598, r36

Less: accumulated depreciation

Capitalassets, net

_$__.EpqlIZe
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$

s,582,2e6

23,209,161

275,M9
5',7,6@

-

24,985,643

2,754,7M

26,96',7,28'7
'7

$

2,754 ;7M

236,0t6

__q__rli_L?z_r

5.

Capital Assets - continued
Depreciation expense for govemmental activities was charged to functions of the City as follows

$

Administration
Fire and emergency services
Road infrastructure
Public works

s9,480

1?10Q7
198,868
18,936

213,464
59.912

Parks

Police department
Total

$513J51

Depreciation expense recorded in business-type activities and the Proprietary Fund was $598,136.

The gross amount of assets included in the equipment category above recorded under capital lease
obligations is $30,752. Accumulated amortization of these assets is $5,766. Amortization expense
is included in depreciation expense. Capital lease obligations are secured by the equipment
purchased.

6.

Long-TermObligations
Long-term Obligations Supporting Governmental Activities
Certificates ofobligation bonds issued by the City are backed by the full faith and credit ofthe City.
These bonds are to be repaid with property taxes levied for debt service and recorded in the Debt
Serwice Fund. The City's borrowing capacity is restrained by maintaining the City's debt at a
responsible level. Other debt issued to support govemmental activities are capital lease obligations
which are primarily paid from the General Fund.
Interest expense for governmental activities was $635,090 and is repofied as a separate line item in
the statement of activities.
Business-Stpe Activities - Revenue Boncls

ofdebt issued to suppoft activities ofthe Proprietary (water and sewer) Fund.
In addition to being backed by the full faith and credit of the City, revenue bonds are secured by a
lien on and a pledge of the surplus revenues ofthe water and sewer system.
Revenue bonds consist

Interest expense for businesstlpe activities and the Proprietary (water and sewer) Fund was
$319,81 I for the year.

The following page contains a summary of changes in bonds payable and capital lease obligations
for the year:
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Dre in
G ot

e

mne ntal

A c ti

Beginning

vili es :

Incr€xs€s

fndng

D€cr€5ses

One Year

C'Eneral Obligation Retunding Bonds

Seies 2013, 2.0Y"-3.5o/.,

21 1 5-2fr21

$

4,315,000

$

$

265,000

s

4,050,000

$

270.000

Taxand Waterworks and Sewer System
Revenue C€rtificates of Obligation

Seies 2014, 2.e/o-4.0o/o,

2fi I 5-2fr34

3,085,000

95,000

2,990,000

140,fi00

5.325,00)

35,000

5,290,000

65,000

3,695,000

150,000

3,545,000

i50.000

I,320,000

35,000

r,285,000

35,m,0

l,I06,I70

4,853

1,101.317

105,000

5,000

100,000

$2,607

'76,2&5

156,322

t2,228

t2,228

Taxafld Watelwork and Sewer System
Revenue Crrtificates of Obligation
Series 2013, 2.0%-4.0%, 2015-2033

Taxand Waterworks and Sewer System
Revenue Certificates of Obligation
Series 2012, 2.{I/-4.0%, 2013-2032

Taxand Watetworks and S€wer System
Revenu€ Certificat€s of Obligation
Series 201 l, 3.0%-4.I25%, 2012-2031

Taxand WateNorks and Sewer System
Revenue C€rtifi cates of Obligation
Series 2004, 4.625%-5.0%,

2U*2029

Crneral Obligation Refunding Bonds
Senes

2ol1 2.U/*3.0o/., 20t3-20?3

5.000

Ctneral Obligation Retunding Bonds
Series 2007, 4.OZ-4.25%, 2008-2021
Capital

Irase Obligations

Total CovemnEntal Activities

$

19,496,005

$

S

678,366

S

18,817,639

8

$

r.833

751,125

Busi ess-tlpe Acti,ities:
Taxand Waterwork and Sewer System
Revenue C€rtificates of OblEation

Seies

20 I 4 4.. 2.65Y.. 201'7 -2024

$

s

1,645,000

1,645,000

$

$

Taxand Waterworks and Sewer System
Revcnue C€rtifi cates of Obligation

2,3r5,rno

Senes 20 I 4, 2.0Yo-4.0o/o, 201 5-2034

2,315,m0

5.000

Taxand Waterwork and Sewer System
Revenue C€rtifi cates of Obligation
Series 2012, 2.0%-4.0%, 2013-2032

665,000

30,000

635,000

30,000

3,740,000

370,000

3,370,000

380,0i10

1,387,393

198.715

l.l

It8,678

213,167

1,105.000

195,000

910,000

205.0tr0

308,829

15.147

293,682

r5,708

Crneral Obligation Retunding Bonds
Series 2012, 2.tr2-3.0%, 2013-2023

Crneral Obligation Retunding Bonds
Series 2007, 4.0/"-{.25%, 2008-2021

Taxand Waterworks and Sewer System
Revenue C€rtifi cates of Obligation
Series 2007, 2.60%-3.602, 2009-2028

Tarand Waterworks and Sewer System
Revenue C€rtiflcat€s of Obligation

Seies 2W1,

4.

625Y. - 5.V/", 2U)4.2029

.15,957

Capital Lease Obligations

Total Business-type Activities

$

9,521,222
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$

1,690,957

45.951

$

808,862

$

10,403,317

$

876,128

6.

Long-Term Obligations - continued
The financial statement presentation for bonds payable is increased by $364,698 in governmental
activities and by $313,752 in both business-t1pe activities and the proprietary fund to reflect bond
premiums that will be amortized over the life of the bonds.
The City's general obligation bonds are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the City. The bond
issues are approved by the voters and repaid with property taxes recorded in the Debt Service Fund.
Current requirements for principal and interest of these obligations are accounted for in the Debt
Service Fund.

Capital lease agreements represent general obligat'ions of the City, and are secured by the equipment
acquired by the capital lease proceeds. Current requirements for principal and interest of capital lease
obligations are accounted for in the appropriate fund for which the liability was incurred.
Compensated absences are paid from the fund responsible for the employee's compensation with
significant liabilities payable from the General Fund.
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonded debt and capital lease obligations are as
follows at year-end:
Clr,ernmental Activities
Year ending
Septembcr

30

2016

Bond principal

$

751,125

Capital lease

Capital lease

Total

principal

interest

Required

Bond interest

s

644,324

S

t,395,49

201'1

76',7,509

626,905

I,394,414

2018

901,110

609,032

t,5t0,142

2019

918,333

588,476

1,506,809

938,320

565,926

15M,246

2021-2025

5,t33,625

2,40n,497

7,534,t22

202G2030

5,9',1',1,6t',7

1.40'7,727

7,385,344

2020

Totals

271,438

3,430,000

2031-2035

$

18,817,639

$

3,707,438

',7,120,325

Busines s -tlTe

20t6

Bond p rincipal

s

848,875

Bond
S

25p37,W

Actiities

Year ending
September 30

$

$

S

Capitallease

Capitaliease

Total

p rincipal

intercst

Required

intercst
1() 07(

)7 r{1

1,173

18,7U

247

s

1,230,276

1,2t0.232

20t'7

892,490

298,191

2018

993,891

273,147

1,267,638

20t9

t,u6,667

245,901

1.272,568

2020

1,061,680

2r2,686

t,274,366

202t-2025

4,246,3',7 5

557,451

4,803,826

202G2030

762,382

189,354

951,'736

525,000

2031-2035

Totals

$

10,357,360

s73,9'15

48,9',75

$

2,179,880

$ 4s,957 $

45

1,420 $

12,584,617

6.

Long-Term Obligations - continued

In addition to the bonds and capital leases above, the City also has the following

long-term

obligations:

lncrease

Balance

Govemt,enlal Activities:
Compensated

abscnces $ 150,367

It is anticipated that the liability for

Duc Within
Onc Ycar

Ending

Beginning

$

184,228

Decrease
S

150,367

Balance

$

184,228

compensated absences described above

$ 184,228

will be paid from

the

General Fund when due.
Bcginning
Balancc
B u s i n es s

Ending
lncreasc

Decrease

Balance

Due Within
One Year

-0'p e A c t iv i ti e s :

Obligation due to
Celina ISD

s

502,556

s 98,002 s 404,s54

$

$ 108,089

The obligation due to Celina ISD is a result ofthe school district funding the cost for the installation
ofa new water line that provides service to school facilities. The obligation is non-interest bearing
however, the City has discounted the debt to estimated present value using the assumption of a 5.5To
annual interest rate. The agreement with Celina ISD is that the City will not bill the school for
water use until such time as the cumulative billings are equal to the cost of installing the water line.
At the current rate of water use by Celina ISD, City management estimates approximately $126,000
of gross billings for annual water use will be credited to this obligation over each of the next four
years.
Special Assessment Revenue Bonds

In 2014, the City issued Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 (Creeks ofLegacy Public
Improvement District Phase #l Project) in the amount of 58,750,000 and Special Assessment
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 (Creeks of Legacy Public Improvement District Phases #2-3 Major
Improvement Project) in the amount of $6,575,000. Total bond principal outstanding for these two
issues is $ I 5,325,000 at year-end.

Proceeds of the bonds were deposited into trust accounts with U.S. Bank N.A. (U.S. Bank) for the
purpose of funding improvements in the projects described above. U.S. Bank serves as trustee, for
the benefit of the bond holders, for these funds as well as any and all other property or money of
every name and nature, which is, from time to tirne hereafter by delivery or in writing of any kind,
conveyed, pledged, assigned or transferred to the trustee.

The City is not obligated in any manner for this special assessment debt, but merely acts as the
property owner's agent in handling the debt service transactions by collecting any special assessment
tax collections and forwarding them to the bondholders. These collections have not yet begun.
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7.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Plan Dcscription
The City of Celina, Texas panicipates as onc of E60 plans in the nontraditional, joint contributory,
hybrid detined benefit pension plan adnrinistcrcd by the Texas Municipal Retirement System
(TMRS). TMRS is an agency created by the State olTexas and administered in accordance with the
TMRS Act, Subtitle G, Title 8, Texas Government Code (the TMRS Act) as an agent multipleemployer retirement system for municipal employees in the State of Texas. The TMRS Act places
the general administration and management of the System with a six-member Board of Trustees.
Although the Govenior. wrth the advice and consent of the Senate, appoints the Board, TMRS is not
fiscally dependent on the State ofTexas. TMRS's detlned benefit pension plan is a tax-qualified plan
under Section 101 (a) of the Internal Rc','cnuc Code. TMRS issues a publicly available
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at wtlu.tnvs.ton

All eligible

employees of the City are required to participate in TMRS

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retiremcnt, disability, ancl clcath bcnefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the
goverrring body of the City, within the optrons availablc in the state statutes goveming TMRS.
At retirenrent. the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the enrployee's contributions, with interest,
and the City-financed monetary credits with interest were used to purchase an annuity. Members
may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payments options. Members may also
choose to receive a portion of their benefit as a Panial Lump Sum Distribution in an amount equal to
12,24, or 36 monthly payments. which cannol excccd 75% of the member's deposits and interest.

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body olthe City, within the options available in the
state statutes goveming TMRS. Plan provisions for the City rvere as follows:

Employee deposit rate
Matching ratio (City to employee)
Years required fbr vesting
Sen ice retirement eligibility
(expressed as age/years of sen,ice)
Updated sen,ice credit
Annuity increase (to retirees)

7.0%

2to

I

5

60t5.0120
0o/o

0% ofCPI

Enployees coveretl by beneJit terms.
At the December 31,2014 valuation and rncasurcmcnt date, the following employees were covered by
the benefit tenxs:
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
lnactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees

2

3l
58

9l

1;

7.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans - continued

Contributions
The contribution rates for employees in TMRS are either 5%,6%, or 7o/t' of employee gross eamings,
and the City matching percentages are either 100%, 150%, or 200%o, both as adopted by the governing
body of the City. Under the state law goveming TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is determined
annually by the actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the cost of benefits eamed by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
Employees for the City of Celina, Texas were required to contribute 7.0% oftheir annual gross earnings
during the fiscal year. The contribution rates for the City of Celina, Texas were 3.47o/. and 524% in
calendar years 2014 and 2015, respectively. The City's contributions to TMRS for the year ended
September 30, 201 5, were $ I 62,349, and were equal to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liabilitv
The City's Net Pension Liability (NPL) was measured as of December 31,2014, and the Total Pension
Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of that date.

Actuarial assumplions :
The Total Pension Liability in the December 3l ,2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation

3.0o/o per year
Overall payoll growth
3.0o/o per year
Investment Rate ofRetum 7.0o/o, net ofpension plan investment expense, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Morlality rates for active members, retirees, and
beneficianes were based on the gender-distinct RP2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table, with male
rates multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%. The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by scale BB to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants,
the gender-distinct RP2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table is used, with slight adjustments.

Actuarial assumptions used in the December 31,2014, valuation were based on the results of actuarial
experience studies. The experience study in TMRS was for the period January l, 2006 through
December 31, 2009, first used in the December 31, 2010 valuation. Healthy post-retirement mortality
rates and annuity purchase rates were updated based on a Mortality Experience Investigation Study
covering 2009 through 2011, and dated December 31, 2013. These assumptions were first used in the
December 3 I, 201 3 valuation, along with a change to the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost
method. Assumptions are reviewed annually. No additional changes were made lor the 2014 valuation.
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans

-

continued

The long{erm expected rate of retum on pension plan investments is 7.0%. The pension plan's policy in
regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TMRS Board of
Trustees. Plan assets are managed on a total retum basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation
as well as the production of income, in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of
TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected retums, net
ofpension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long+erm expected rate of retum by weighting the expected future real
rates of retum by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class are summarized
in the following table:
Asset Class

Target Allocation

Long-Term Expected Real Rate ofR€turn (Arithmetic)

Domestic Equity

t7
t7

.50%
.50%

4.80%

International Equiry
Core Fixed Income

30.00%

1.50%

Non-Core Fired Income
Real Rehlm

10.00%

3.50%
t.75%

Real Estate

10.00%

5.25%

Absolute Retum

5.otr/o

4.25%

5.ju/o

8.50%

Private Equity

Total

6.05%

5.ju/o

100.00%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.0%o. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at
the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods ofprojected benefit paynents to determine the Total Pension Liability.
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7.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans
Changes in the Net Pension

continued

-

Liability
lncrerse (Decrease)
Total Pension

B^hnce at l2l3ll20l3

Liability
2,755,535

$

Nrl I'tnsiotr I.ialnlitv

Plan FiduciaryNet Position
3,329,347

$

$

(5?1,8l2)

Changes for the year:
Service cost

349,532

lnterest

2M,236

204,236

Change ofbenefit tenrE

Differerce between epected and actual eperience

I

l,2rl

I

r.2ll

Changes ofassurrptions

Contributions

-

enployer

962n9

(%,20e)

Contributions

-

enployee

20t,034

(20 r,03.1)

190,520

(r90,520)

Net investment incorIE

(2s28e)

(25,2ri9)

Benefit paynEnts, including refunds of enployee contdbuiions

(1,988)

Administrative epense

I.988

(r63)

Other changes
Net changes

519,692

S

Balance at l2l31/2014

3,295,227

s

163

460,323 li

S

3,789,670

S

$

79.169

(491,443)

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discounl rate
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.0%o, as
well as what the City's net pension tiability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage-point lower (6.0%) or I -percentage-point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:
I

Decrease in
Discount Rate (6.0%)

City's net pension li.ability

7o

$

105,014

DiscouDt Ratc (7.0/o)
$

l7o Increase in Discount

(494,443) s

Rate (8.02)

(97s,8s4)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued
TMRS financial report. That report may be obtained on the Intemet at \L'\i:h .tttrs.(onl
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions
For the year ended September 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of$132,002.
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7.

Delined Benefit Pension Plans

At

September 30,2015, the

-

continued

City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Dcferred Outflows
of Resources
Differences between expectcd and achral economic expericncc

$

Defered Inflows
of Resources

9,549

Changes in achrarial assumptions

Difference between projccted and actual investment eamings
Contnbutions subsequent to the measwement date
Total

34,W7
132,564
s

176,140

S

$132,564 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the
year ending September 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended Dec

20t5
20t6

$l0,l7l

2017

sl0,l7t

201 8

s

2019

$
$

$

Thereafter

8.

3I

:

l0,l 7l
l0,l

70

1,664

t,229

Litigation
From time to time, the City is involved in litigation in the ordinary course of business. City
management considers the Iikelihood of any material liability resulting from this litigation to be
remote.

9.

Contingencies
The City participates in various state and federal grant programs and contracts which are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Audits ofthese programs for
the year ended September 30, 2015 have not been conducted. Accordingly, the City's compliance
with applicable grant and contract requirements will be established at some future date. The City
expects that costs disallowed by these various awarding agencies, if any, would be minimal.

5l

10.

Balances and Transfers/Payments Within the Reporting Entity
Receit'ab les

a

nd Pa.va b I es

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported as "due to/from other funds" in the
govemmental fund financial statements include outstanding charges by one fund to another for
services or goods, and other miscellaneous receivables/payables between funds. Activity between
funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements that are outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are described as "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). The following
schedule reports receivables and payables within the reporting entity at year-end:
Pa)lable

Receivable
Debt Service Fund
Proprietary Fund
General Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Component units

5

20,278
400,000

$

2,398,297
438,916

2,378,019
38 9t6

$2-811213

$2-8312!tr

Transfers and Payments

Transfers and payments within the reporting entity are substantially for the purposes of funding capital
projects and asset acquisitions, or maintaining debt seryice on a routine basis. Resources are
accumulated in a fund to support and simplify the administration ofvarious projects or programs.
The following schedule reports transfers and payments within the reporting entity:
Fund
General Fund
Proprietary Fund

Transfers

s

In

Transfers Out

395,000

$

395.000

The transfer in lrom the Proprietary Fund provided the General Fund with supplementary revenue for
the year. In addition to the above transfers, the component units contributed S200,000 to the debt
service fund in order to supplement debt service payments for the year.

ll.

Operating Leases
The City has entered into lease agreements for copier machines. Following is a summary of the
annual minimum lease requirements under these agreements:
Year endins 9/30

Annual lease requirement

20t6

19,638
16,824
16,824

2017

2018
2019
2020
Total required

t4,235
5 5RS

$ilJlo

Lease expense for the year ending September 30, 2015 was $28,746
52

12.

EconomicDependence

City operations are funded by taxes and revenues provided by the residents of the City of Celina,
Texas. Accordingly, the City is economically dependent on the property values and local economy of
City of Celina, Texas and the surrounding area.

13.

Post-EmploymentBenefits
The City participates in the cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit group term life insurance
plan operated by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) known as the Supplemental
Death Benefits Fund (SDBF). The City elected, by ordinance, to provide group term life insurance
coverage to both current and retired employees. The City may terminate coverage under and
discontinue participation in the SDBF by adopting an ordinance before November 1 of any year to be
effective the following January 1.

The death benefit for active employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the
employee's annual salary (calculated based on the employee's actual earnings, for the 12 month
period preceding the month of death); retired employees are insured for $7,500; this coverage is an
"other postemployment benefit," or OPEB.

Contributions

The City contributes to the SDBF at a contractually required rate as determined by an annual
actuarial valuation. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one year term life insurance. The
funding policy for the SDBF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all
death benefit payments for the upcoming year; the intent is not to prefund retiree term life insurance
during employees' entire careers. The City's contributions to the TMRS SDBF for the years ended
2Ol5,2Ol4 and 2013 were $4,405, $3,570 and $3,237, respectively, which equaled the required
contributions each year.

14.

Prior Period Adjustments

In 2015, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement 6'7, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25,
and GASB Statement 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27. The adoption of this new standard required a prior period adjustmenr to
opening equity in Business-type activities and the Proprietary fund in the amount of $79,1 10. It also
required an adjustment to opening equity in Governmental activities in the amount of $560.941.

15.

Subsequent Events
Subsequent to year-end, the City has issued additional certificates of obligation in the total amount

of

$19,425,000 which represent direct obligations of the City and will have an effect on future debt
service requirements.

City has issued special assessment revenue bonds in the total amount of
$64,365,000. These bonds are special assessment obligations of the City payable solely from the
Subsequent to year-end, the

pledged revenues and other funds in the trust estate. These special assessment bonds do not give rise
to a charge against the general credit or the taxing power of the City and are payable solely from the
sources identified in the indenture
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS
Budgetary Comparison Schcdule
General Fund
Ycar Ended Septembcr 30,2015
Variance

Original

Final

Budget

Budget

Favorable

Actual

(Unfavorable)

2,53'7

S

REVENUES:
Ad valorem taxes

$

2,430,445

r0,000

2,5

s

.123

27,123
58,063

306,700
600,000

364,7 63

603,949

3,949

t,24t,82s

I,757,500

t,'76',7,856

10,3 56

Sales tax

Permits and inspection fees
Development fees

$

284,550
494,891

Franchise taxes

80,000

920,000

924,249

4,249

Fire department and EMS revenues

175,000

172,000

241,005

69,005

Fines

151,400

205,000

11',7

,266
100,000

2t

254,370
221,696

49,3',70

Special events and donations

284,000

602,626

318,626

83,301

526,463
40,609

343,t62

8,084,709

889,442

Park fees
Other income
Interest

Total Revenucs

9'7

,412

35,000

I

6,7

66

40,000

5,207,789 7,195,267

4,930

609

EXPENDITURES:
Adminishation

r,346,918
'79,45l

I,161,954

I,133,574

28,380

Judicial

86,443

1,590

Fire and emergency services

I,438,253

t,362,090

84,853
t,316,27 5

545,980

524,7 t2

8,614

806,788

2t,268
3t,826

8,195

1,046,t60

72,035

Development serr'ices

7

Public works

858,056

Police department
Parks and recreation

Library
Main street project

I

47

,586

,l 87,83 6

83

1,

591,055
146,336

680,142

66'7

t4t,434

r

63,960

100,975

Capital outlay
Debt service

Total Erpenditures

,908

45,815

12,234

40,857

577

70,510

30,465

1,122,'728

6,459,51I 6,035,827

6,914,365

(1,251,722) r,1s9,440

1,170,344

(t ,t22,'7 28)
(878,s38)

Excess (deficiency) of revcnues

over (under) expcnditures

10.9 0.t

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds Aom sale ofassets

Operating transfers in (out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund balancc, Septcmbcr 30

t2,525

1,252,000

345,000

365,000

20,000

1,252,000

345.000

3

77,5 25

32,525

1,504,440

l,s47,869

43,429

3,057,960 3,057,960

3,057 960

278

Net change in lund balancc
Fund balance. Octobcr I

12,525

$ 3,058,238 $ 4,562,400 $ 4,605,829 $

SCHEDULE NOTES:
The budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accouting principles
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43,429

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
Last 10 Fiscal Years (will ultimately be displayed)
2074

Total pension liability
Service Cost
Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)
Changes of benefit terms
Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net Change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liabilify - Ending

$

349,532
204,236
I 1,2l3

(2s,289)
51S 6q7

$

2,7 55,535

3,29s,227

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee
Net Investment Income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative Expense
Other
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending
Net Pension Liability (Asset) - Ending

S

(

Net Pension

Liabilig

460,323

5
$

56

3,329,347
3,789,670
(494,443)
115.00%

$

as a Percentage of Covered Employee PaS,roll

l ,988)

(163)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total Pension Liability
Covered Employee Payroll

96,209
201,034
190,520
(2s,28e)

2,871,910
-17 .22o/o

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
Schedule of Contributions
Last 10 Fiscal Years (will ultimately be displayed)

2015

Actuarially Determined Contribution

s

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution

162,349

t62,349

Contribution defi ciency (excess)

s

Covered employee payroll

S

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

3,388,197

4.79%

Schedule Notes:
Valuutk)n D\tes:
Notes

Actuarially detemined contribution rates are calculated

as

of December 3l and becomc

effective January, l3 months later.
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rale,\:
Actuarial Cost Method
Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method
Lcvel Perc€ntage ofPayoll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 25 years
Asset Valuation Method
i0 Year smoothed market; I 5% soft corridor

lnflation
Safary Increases
lnvestment Rate ofReturn
Retirement Age
Mortality

3.00%
3.50Yo

to

12.00o/o

including inflation

7.00%
Experience-based table ofrates that are specific to the Cify's plan ofbenefits. Last
updates for the 2010 valuation pursuant to an experience study ofthe period 2005-2009
RP2000 Combined Mortality Table with Blue Collar Adjustment with males rates

multiptied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103% and projected on a fully
generational basis with scale BB.
Other Inlormation
Notes

There were no benefit changcs during the year
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SUPPLEMENTARY SCIIEDULES

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2015 (Unaudited)

Tax
Roll
Year

Fiscal Year
Ended
September 30

2014

201 5

2013

2014

3,813

2012

2013

a )1\

2011

2012

3,602

201 0

2011

2 800

2009

201 0

2,034

2008

2009

2,471

2001

2008

1,696

2006

2007

2,215

2005 and prior

4,254

Outstanding
Balance

s

Allowance for uncollectible tax

Delinquent tax receivable,

59

net $

14,4',79

(4,164)
37,475

CITY OF CELINA. TE,XAS
HISTORICAI- SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUATION
YE,AR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20.l5 (Unauditcd)

Tax
Roll
Year

Fiscal Year
Ended
September 30

20t4

201 5

550,278,293

70]l3

2014

505,896,214

2012

2013

4'r8,640,217

201I

2012

461,63 I ,888

2010

201

I

454,r5t,622

2009

201 0

453,846,095

2008

2009

463,330,20t

2007

2008

418,824,688

2006

2007

284,847,298

2005

2006

224,412,066

60

Net
Taxable

Valuation

CITY OF CELINA, TEXAS
HISTORICAL SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX RATES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 (Unaudited)

Tax
Roll
Year

Fiscal Year
Ended
September 30

2014

2015

0.6450

201 3

2011

0.6450

2012

2013

0.6450

201I

2012

0.64s0

201 0

201

0.6450

2009

201 0

0.6450

2008

2009

0.6450

2001

2008

0.6550

2006

7001

0.6900

2005

2006

0.7400

1
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Tax Rates

CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS
Additional Information (Unaudited)
September 30, 2015

\ame

Title

Sean Terry

Mayor
Council
Member
Council
Member
Council
Member
Council
Member
Council
Member
Council
Member

Erik Geiger
Andy Hopkins
Chad Anderson

Wayne Nabors
Carmen Roberts

Lori Vaden

Citv Manaser
Mike Foreman

a

a
a

a
a

Date First
Elected to Council

Current Term

2008

2017

201 5

2016

20t5

201 8

2013

20t6

2007

201 8

201

I

20t7

2011

2017

ecret

Vicki Faulkner

Ex

res

Water Operator
David Stone

Class Certificate: C
Date of Last Chemical Analys is of Water: Aueust I 1 . 201 4
Number of Residential/Commercial Water Users with one inch meters: Approximatelv 593

Number
Number
Number
Number

of
of
of
of

Residential/Commercia[ Water Users with3l4 inch meters: A
imatel 2 793
Commercial Water Users with larg er than one inch meters: Approximately 96
Residential/Commercial Sewer Users with 4 inch meters: Apnroximatel v2
Commercial Sewers with larger than one inch meters: Approximatelv 40
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CITY OF CELINA. TEXAS
Additional Inlbrmation (Unaudited)
September 30, 201 5
Water Rates
Residential
0 - 2,000 gallons (Minimum):
518 and 314 inch meter
I inch meter
I % -inch meter
2-inch meter

E

lfectivc

Dcccmber. 201

I

$ 22.25
$ 38.93

s
$

$
$
$
$

2,001 to 10,000 gallons
10,001 to 20,000 gallons
20,001 to 30,000 gal
30,001 and above gallons
Commercial
0 - 2,000 gallons (Minimum):
518 andS/4 inch meter
I inch meter
I % inch meter
2 inch meter
3 inch meter
4 inch meter

'77.87

r24.59
4.96 per 1,000 gal
7.44 per 1,000 gal
8.68 per 1,000 gal
12.40 per 1,000 gal

$ 27.81
$ 48.67
$ 97.34
$
$
$

$
$
$
$

2,001 to 10,000 gallons
I 0,001 to 20,000 galtons
20,001 to 30,000 gal
30,001 and above gallons
Sewer Rates
Residential
0-2,000 gal (Minimum):
518 and 314 inch meter
I or 2 inch meter
I % inch meter
2,001 to 14,000 gal
Usage fees cap at 14,000 gal

155.74
233.60
389.34

4.96 per 1,000 gal
7 .44 per 1,000 gal
8.68 per 1,000 gal
12.40 per 1,000 gal

s 20.60
s 38.63
s 72.10

$
$

Conrmercial
0-2,000 gal (Minimum):
518 and314 inch meter
I inch meter
I % inch meter
2 inch meter
4 inch meter
2,001 and above gal

5.74 per 1,000 gal
89.45 Max

s 25.75
s 48.29
$
s
$

$
63

90.13
154.50
386.25
5.74 per 1,000 gal

